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I. CALL TO ORDER:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Good evening. I'm Shean Atkins,

Chair of the East Point Planning & Zoning Commission and tonight is

our May 17th -- yes, it's the 17th. Tonight is our May 17th meeting,

our regular scheduled meeting of the East Point Planning & Zoning

Commission. At this time, I will call the meeting to order and Staff, if

you would, please, give your Roll Call.

II. ROLL CALL:

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner René.

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: (No response.)

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Wares.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Present.

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Here.

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Fann.

COMMISSIONER FANN: (No response.)

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Atkins.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Present.

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Mallory.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: (No response.)

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Here.

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Bryant.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Present.

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Washington.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Reported By:
Jeanene Harper

(404) 228-8807 Office

5

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Present.

MS. HOLMES: Mr. Chair, you have a quorum.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you. In absence of a

prayer, this Body recognizes a Moment of Silence so at this time, we

will take a Moment of Silence.

III. MOMENT OF SILENCE:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: If everyone would please rise and

join us in the Pledge of Allegiance.

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

(Whereupon the Pledge of Allegiance rendered.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you. Commissioners, at this

time, I will entertain a motion to adopt the agenda as printed.

V. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA:

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Mr. Chairman.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Dr. Bryant.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: I make a motion that we adopt

the agenda as printed.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER WARES: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Dr. Bryant and

seconded by Commissioner Wares that we adopt the agenda as

printed. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

Commissioners, at this time, I will entertain a motion to approve our

April 19th, 2012 meeting minutes.

VI. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES:

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Mr. Chairman.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Bryant.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: I make a motion that we approve

the April 19th minutes.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Bryant and seconded by Commissioner Tucker that we approve our

April 19th, 2012 meeting minutes. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

Commissioners, we're moving to New Business.

VII. NEW BUSINESS:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Our first Case Number is 2012 "U"

as in under-002-04. Staff, would you please sound this Case Item.

MS. HOLMES: Case Number 2012U-002-04. Applicant is Olu

Brown. Location is 2323 Sylvan Road, request for a Special Use

Permit for a church, temple or place of worship.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Thank you.
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MS. HOLMES: His applicant requires a public hearing.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. As mentioned, this

application, as well as our other applications, requires a public

hearing. We will open the public hearing, but before I do that, I will

read the rules for our public hearing and then I will entertain a

motion from the commissioners to open the public hearing.

(Whereupon the Rules for Public Hearing are read.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Public hearings before the Planning

and Zoning Commission shall be conducted in accordance to Section

10-2219 of the East Point Planning and Zoning Code and

Development Regulations as follows: Persons both favoring and

opposing the proposed case will be provided an opportunity to

address the Commission. The applicant for the zoning case or the

applicant's designated representative, if any, will be entitled to speak

first followed by other speakers in favor of the proposal for a total of

fifteen (15)minutes. Those who oppose the proposed zoning case

will then be permitted to speak for a total of fifteen (15) minutes

also. By majority vote, the Commission may increase the total time

of speakers provided that each side is given the same amount of

time. If there's more than one speaker for a side, the Chair or

presiding officer may limit the time allotted to each individual speaker

other than the zoning applicant. The zoning applicant may reserve a

portion of his or her allotted time for rebuttal. Speakers must adhere

to the rules of decorum. Prior to speaking, each speaker shall

identify him or herself and State his or her current address. Each
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speaker shall speak only to the merits of the proposed zoning

decision under consideration, shall address remarks only to the

Commission and shall refrain from making personal attacks on any

other speaker. The presiding officer may refuse a speaker the right

to continue if, after first being cautioned, the speaker continues to

vile invite the rules of decorum. Commissioners, at this time, I will

entertain a motion to open the public hearing for Case Number 2012

"U" as in under-002-04.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Motion to open the public

hearing for this item.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER WARES: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Sheldon, seconded by Dr. Wares that we open a public hearing for

Case Number 2012 "U" as in under-002-04. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The public hearing is now open. Are there any proponent or is the

applicant here to speak to this case?

SPEAKER: Mr. Chair --

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Would you please come to
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the podium. State your full name and your current address.

SPEAKER: Thank you.

(Whereupon Applicant Olu Brown approaches the podium.)

APPLICANT OLU BROWN: Olu Brown, 5628 Jamerson Drive,

Atlanta, Georgia. Mr. Chair, I'd like to ask for permission if the team

that presented during the Work Session could stand with me.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

APPLICANT OLU BROWN: There's some other additional

individuals -- that being David Scott and Joe Brown would be --

afforded the opportunity to speak along with me as well.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. You have a total of fifteen

(15) minutes.

APPLICANT OLU BROWN: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

MS. HOLMES: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair. Could you hold just one

moment.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Absolutely.

MS. HOLMES: Please remember to speak directly into the

microphone.

APPLICANT OLU BROWN: Thank you. Olu Brown Lead

Pastor of Impact Church, which is a United Methodist Church

community that is currently located in Atlanta, Georgia, specifically in

the Westend Community. We have identified property, 2323 Sylvan

Road, East Point, Georgia formerly the Plymart Company, that we

would like to transition our worship and our programming activities to
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and it is our hope that you, as a Commission, would vote in favor of

our Special Use Permit. At this time, David Scott from our team will

come and share specifics of our application.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Mr. Scott, would you State

your full name and your current address also.

DAVID SCOTT: David Scott. My address is 1246 Spring Creek

in Atlanta, Georgia.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

DAVID SCOTT: Good evening.

COMMISSIONERS: Good evening.

DAVID SCOTT: As Olu has stated, we're asking for a Special

Use Permit to be able to locate our church at the property of 2323

Sylvan Road. As you all may know, this property was most recently

the Plymart Warehouse. It's at the corner of Oakley and Sylvan just

South of 155. I'm sorry, Lakewood Freeway 166. The property is

about 10.35 acres and it has a structure on it just over 75,000 square

feet and our intention in phase one is to development the property a

little bit less than half of that square footage and be able to move in

by June of next year so in terms of our timeframe, we're gonna take

the rest of this year to do our planning and we hope that we can

start construction January of next year, which gives us six months to

do construction. So with that -- unless there are any questions --

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Thank you. Are there other

speakers? Are there other proponents for this case?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Are there other proponents for this

case?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Any other proponents.

AUDIENCE: Seeing none, are there any opponents for this

case?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Are there any opponents that

would like to speak?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Are there any opponents for this

case?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Seeing none,

Commissioners at this time, I will entertain a motion to close the

public hearing.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I make a motion that we close

the public hearing on this matter.

COMMISSIONER WARES: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. It's been moved by

Commissioner Sheldon that we close the public hearing for this

Agenda Item. It's been seconded by Commissioner Wares. All in

favor sound aye.
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COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The public hearing is now closed. Staff, if you would please sound

your recommendation.

MS. HOLMES: Yes, sir. With respect to Case Number

2012U-002-04, Staff's recommendation is approval with the follows

conditions: Replant Evergreen trees along the rear property -- rear

of the property line facing Pegg Road, install the minimum buffers

and landscape strips required for the OIT Zoning District, a 6-foot

wooden Black vinyl chain link or ornamental metal fence is required

along the parameter of the parking lot where adjacent to the public

right-of-way. Additional Evergreen plant materials is required to be

installed in an existing landscape areas along Sylvan Road. Parking

lot items shall be landscaped per Chapter 6 of the East Point Zoning

Code and Development Regulations. On-street parking shall be

prohibited.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you, Staff. Commissioners,

you've heard Staff's recommendation. At this time, I will entertain a

motion.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: I would make a motion to

approve.
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COMMISSIONER FANN: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. It's been moved and

properly seconded. It's moved by Commissioner Tucker, seconded

by Commissioner Fann for discussion. I have a few questions and

my questions are really of Staff so I'll go over those and they really

pertain to the conditions. I'll start with condition Number Two (2).

Condition Number Two (2) is the minimum buffers and landscape

strips required in the OIT Zoning District. If that's -- is that already a

part of our zoning ordinance?

MS. HOLMES: That's correct.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So we will need to make

that a part of the conditions if it's already a part of the zoning

ordinance.

MS. HOLMES: It's speaking specifically to this property. It

can be or can't be but we felt as Staff it would be appropriate to

make it a condition of the property.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Well, because it's already a

part of the ordinance --

MS. HOLMES: Well, it's a part of the ordinance for properties

that are zoned OIT. This property is zoned Industrial, Light Industrial

to be specific.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. And so what are the buffer

standards for this property site in OIT?

MS. HOLMES: I'm sorry, Commissioner. I don't have the

current ordinance before me, but it is specified in Table Two (2) of
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Chapter 6 of the Zoning Code and Development Regulations.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Table Two (2). All right.

Okay. I'm okay with that one then. If it's already a part of the

zoning ordinance because otherwise in order to vary from that, they

would have to come back for a various and so I'm okay with that, for

that buffer. Number One (1), I want to go back to that but Staff's

condition is to replant Evergreen trees along the rear of the property

line facing Pegg Road. I would like to change the wording to that

because for me when we say replant, that means that something is

coming up and we would have to put more down to the extent that

there's already a buffer there and I wouldn't want any of the trees to

come out so I would rather that we say to augment the true density

along the rear of the property by and facing Pegg Road -- if the

Commission is okay with that wording --

COMMISSIONERS: (Nods head for yes.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: You all okay with that?

COMMISSIONERS: Yes.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So that's it, Condition One

(1) and Condition Two (2). Condition Three (3), the fence. I know

that along Oakley and in OIT, are fences absolutely required in the

OIT Zoning --

MS. HOLMES: Fences are required in the I1, I2 and BP

Industrial Zoning Districts. All areas along the right-of-way must be

screened with opaque fencing.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: With opaque fencing?
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MS. HOLMES: That is correct.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

MS. HOLMES: Understanding that this is an institutional use

and it's in the industrial park and it is transitional. We didn't require

the opaque fencing but we are requiring a fence.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. For this one here, I guess

the fencing piece, I know that there's a fence that's currently there

and the fence around the structure also is -- I think I that night to

say six feet tall with bob wire atop. I would just hate for a church to

have to live with that and so to the extent that the fence could come

down, would we also be okay with perhaps with perhaps some type

of vegetative fence along with Oakley side with maybe gates at the

parking lot entrance. I don't want them to feel apart from the

community but in deed, a part of the community.

MS. HOLMES: This is -- and as I speak to their gate to their

entrance, just to the actual area where the parking would be seen

from the actual right-of-way --

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Uh-uh.

MS. HOLMES: -- but as I understand it, you're saying now to

not include a material fence but a vegetative fence instead?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: If the applicant would agree to

some type of vegetation along the Oakley side, I would like to see

some type of gates at the drive because that's a huge parking lot and

so right now, if they take the fence down, then that would leave

access to others during the hours that the church is not using the
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facility or in operation so I think at the entrances to the parking lot, a

gate would be very important to have so I know that Staff's

recommendation is the chain link, the wooden or the ornamental

fence. I would also like to -- I would like to recommend some type

of vegetative fence along that side.

MS. HOLMES: In addition to the physical material fence?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: That's correct because that would

give them that option.

MS. HOLMES: You want it as an option, not as a

requirement?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Exactly for this.

COMMISSIONER FANN: I just want to say something. I don't

know if you want to put that physical condition on there. That's a

cost factor. It should have been not did before, you know, you put

that vegetation out there so, I mean, I know if you want to make

that condition but if you want to make that an option, they can do it

as an option then that would be fine. But I don't think we want to

put it on as a condition.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Well, I'll ask the applicant or

actually the Pastor, if we add a vegetative buffer or fence along the

Oakley side, would that be something that the church would think

that it would be amenable to?

APPLICANT OLU BROWN: Joe will speak to it. He's turned in

his card.

JOE BROWN: Joe Brown, 504 Fair Street. I guess the
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question is is it either a vegetative fence or a material fence?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It would be an option to add the

vegetative fence along the Oakley side, yes.

JOSEPH BROWN: Either one.

DAVID SCOTT: Could we consider some other vegetation

that's currently there as part of that in augment since it's already

existing to meet that condition?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Well, a vegetative fence would

allow you to do that. I mean, I know that right now, there's some

ratty pine trees there, Mr. Scott. I know that right now there's some

ratty pine trees and some kudzu and so to the extent that you've

made an investment in the property, I would think you to say that

you'd like to put something there that would enhance the curb appeal

of the facility. My challenge is is that according to our zoning

ordinance, a fence is required. What I would not like to see or force

the church to have to do is to put up some type of chain link fence or

some type of structure that really sort of kind of keeps it separated

from the community. It's really my hope that with the church moving

to that particular facility that it would become a catalyst really for

some other development along Sylvan Road and it is one of the entry

point into the street and I just think that to force you to have to do a

chain link fence or some of the other things, that as Commissioner

Fann said, could be costly, I think that the vegetative fence, you have

some options. You can do some colors, flowers, some shrubs some

of those things but there are some ratty pine trees along that side.
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I'm just saying.

JOSEPH BROWN: Yeah, the modified conditions will be act

acceptable.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So can we add a vegetative

structure, if the Commission is okay with that.

COMMISSIONERS: (Nods heads for yes.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

COMMISSIONER FANN: And that's either or.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Right, exactly.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Number Four (4). For Number

Four (4), I do have a challenge with this particular condition.

Number Four (4) is additional Evergreen plant material is to be

required to be installed in existing landscaped area along Sylvan

Road. From historical perspective, I have a challenge with this one

because when the building was first built, it was built for

International Paper, there were no Evergreens along that Sylvan

Road there. Only when Plymart became the owner of the building

and because they were storing a lot of their materials outside, this

Body decides to place that condition on Plymart and they planted the

Evergreens there which are really huge. I think it really hides the

building. So with some of the improvements you're gonna make, I

don't know if I would want the church to have to keep those should

they desire to take those down so that you can see their structure

and any of their improvement that their making to the building so I

would like to strike that condition if the Commission is okay with that.
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COMMISSIONER TUCKER: I agree. It's an option if ya'll want

to take it. You would want to see the church.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: I think Plymart was storing lumber

outside and a lot of those things and so we wanted some type of

barrier for that so I'd like to strike that condition completely, Number

Four (4), if that's okay with the Commission. If the church would like

to keep it, then that's okay but, of course, I think that you might

want to take it down with all of the improvements that you're gonna

make to the building. Number Five (5), the parking lot islands, I

have a question. With the site plan that you all have submitted,

there's some islands, this will -- gonna be approximately how many

parking spaces? I think it's 600 and --

DAVID SCOTT: Yes, 623 is the -- of parking spaces.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So this site plan will get you 623

parking spaces?

DAVID SCOTT: That's correct, yes.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Which is more than

sufficient for the requirements; correct, Staff?

MS. HOLMES: Correct.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. And with this particular site

plan, I'm assuming that you had your consultants to draw it, is there

a way for us to condition the island so that it meets this particular

site plan?

MS. HOLMES: No, not that I'm aware of, no.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.
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MS. HOLMES: They're governed by the development

regulations along with which it's required. In Chapter 6, there's

additional requirements in Article E, which would be accessed at the

time of CO, Certificate of Occupancy, I'm sorry.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So then Number Five (5) is

very similar to Number Two (2) because it's already a part of the

zoning ordinance, correct?

MS. HOLMES: Correct.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Is this the plan that you all

plan to implement as it relates to the parking lot islands?

DAVID SCOTT: Yes, it is with just one exception. We may

not install all 623 of the spaces from day one but it is our intention

that that is required. That would reflect the full parking lot build-out.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. All right. Well, I'll leave

that condition because it's already required in our zoning ordinance.

And then Number Six (6), I'm okay with that, the on-street parking

shall be prohibited, as Sylvan is a major thoroughfare and a very

business on the street. We would not want your parishioners parking

there on Oakley where the transfer trucks going down there. So,

with all of that, I guess I am asking for a friendly amendment to the

motion.

COMMISSIONER FANN: I'll make it. I'll make it. I make a

friendly amendment to the motion.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Commissioner Fann.

COMMISSIONER FANN: Motion that we accept the conditions
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by Commissioner Atkins as it relates to those changes.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's Joel's motion.

MS. HOLMES: Commissioners, please remember to use your

microphones.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, okay.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Commissioner Fann, I would

greatly accept your friendly amendment.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

COMMISSIONER WARES: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So the motion and the

second still stands and so now the motion that we're voting on,

Commissioners, is approval of the Special Use Permit with the

conditions as Commissioner Atkins has stated and it's been moved

and properly seconded. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay. Hearing

none, the ayes it have. Thank you. All right. Okay.

DAVID SCOTT: Thank you.

OLU BROWN: Thank you.

JOSEPH BROWN: Thank you. May we be excused?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, you may be excused. Okay.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: You're done.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Staff would you please

sound the next Agenda Item which is Case Number 2012 "Z" as in

zebra-002-02.
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MS. HOLMES: The applicant is Theresa Newsome. Location

and description is 1638 Woodberry Avenue. Applicant is requesting a

rezoning from R1-A to R-2.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. This particular Agenda Item

also requires a public hearing. Commissioners, at this time, I'll

entertain a motion to open the public hearing.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I make a motion that we open

public hearing for this item.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER WARES: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Sheldon and seconded by Commissioner Wares to open a public

hearing. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes it have.

The public hearing is now open. If we have an applicant here if you

would please approach the podium. State your first and last name

and your current address.

(Whereupon the Applicant Theresa Newsome approaches the

podium.)

APPLICANT THERESA NEWSOME: I am Theresa Newsome.
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My current address is 4070 Russian River Drive, College Park. I own

the property at 1638 Woodberry Avenue, which is the property in

question now. It is a rezoning issue. When I purchased the property

back in the 1970s -- in September, 1970 as a matter of fact, it was

zone R-3. I purchased it as a duplex. It was built as a duplex back

in 1958 in adjacent to the military installation. I have rented it since

my purchase as a duplex for that entire time. The reason I'm here is

I understand at some point, 2009, 2005 that area was rezoned. My

particular property was rezoned R1-A. All the duplexes on that street

remained -- went from R-3 to R-2. What I'm requesting is to rezone

my property correctly to R-2. Although tax papers do indicate that

it's still zoned R-3 and I've been accessed for utilities based on the

R-3 zoning.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

APPLICANT THERESA NEWSOME: So I just want to rezone it

so I can rent it again. I've had to vacant it.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All right. Is that all?

APPLICANT THERESA NEWSOME: Yeah, you want me to say

more. I can talk, now.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's your opportunity to present.

You have fifteen (15) minutes. If you think that you've covered all of

your bases --

APPLICANT THERESA NEWSOME: I've pretty much covered

it. That's all I know to say.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. All right.
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APPLICANT THERESA NEWSOME: I'll entertain questions.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. No questions right now.

Are there any other proponents for this case?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Are there any other proponents for

this case?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Last time. Any other proponents.

Seeing none, are there any opponents for this case?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Any opponents.

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Third time. Any opponents?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Seeing none, Commissioners, at

this time, I'll entertain a motion to close the public hearing.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Yes --

COMMISSIONER WARES: So moved.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Wares, seconded by Commissioner Sheldon that we close the public

hearing. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The public hearing is now closed. Staff, would you please sound

your recommendation.

MS. HOLMES: With respect to Case Number 2012Z-002-02,

Staff's recommendation is approval.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioners, you've heard the

applicant. You've also heard Staff's recommendation. At this time I

will entertain a motion.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I make a motion that we

recommend approval of Case Number 2012Z-002-02.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there is second?

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved and properly

seconded. Is there any discussion?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Any discussion?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. It's been moved and

properly seconded that we recommend approval for Case Number

2012 "Z" as in zebra-002-02. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

We will recommend approval, okay.

APPLICANT THERESA NEWSOME: Oh, thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you.

APPLICANT THERESA NEWSOME: I'm done?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, you're done. Okay. All right.

Staff, are there any announcements?

VIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

MS. HOLMES: The last two Planning Development series 101

-- Planning and Development 101 Series will be held on May 24th at

the St. Stephens Missionary Baptist Church in the Family Life Center

and May 31st at the AJC Bowden Center. Please come out to hear

energy efficient saving tips for your homes as well as to learn about

the development process here in the City of East Point. In addition

to that, we have floor prizes and giveaways. We've already given

away four stealth toilets to recipients who've come to the meetings

so please come out and join us. All meetings began at 6 o'clock,

promptly at 6.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: That information on the Website,

too.

MS. HOLMES: That information is on the Web.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Okay.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioners, are there any

announcements.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Just wanted to share -- you all

know my mother, Maxine C. Jackson. She will be 86 on the 24th so

please say a prayer. Just wish her Happy Birthday for me in your

hearts.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: If there are no other

announcements, Commissioners, I'll entertain a motion to adjourn.

IX. ADJOURNMENT:

COMMISSIONER FANN: Motion to adjourn.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved and properly

seconded that we adjourn this meeting our May 17th meeting, 2012.

All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

This meeting is now adjourned.

(Whereupon this concludes the City of East Point Planning &

Zoning Commission meeting for May 17th, 2012.)
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